ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
HOUSE JUDI CI ARY STANDI NG COW TTEE
February 28, 2001
1: 10 p. m

MVEMBERS PRESENT

Represent ati ve Nor man Rokeberg, Chair
Representative Scott Ogan, Vice Chair
Representati ve Jeannette Janes
Represent ati ve John Coghi l
Representati ve Kevin Meyer
Representative Ethan Berkow tz

MVEMBERS ABSENT
Representative Al bert Kookesh
COW TTEE CALENDAR

HOUSE BI LL NO. 4

"An Act relating to offenses involving operating a notor
vehicle, aircraft, or watercraft while under the influence of an
al coholic beverage or controlled substance; relating to inplied
consent to take a chemcal test; relating to registration of
notor vehicles; relating to presunptions arising fromthe anount
of alcohol in a person's breath or blood; and providing for an
effective date.”

- HEARD AND HELD
PREVI QUS ACTI ON
BILL: HB 4

SHORT TI TLE: OMNI BUS DRUNK DRI VI NG AMENDMENTS
SPONSCR( S) : REPRESENTATI VE( S) ROKEBERG

Jrn-Date Jr n- Page Action
01/ 08/ 01 0024 (H PREFI LE RELEASED 12/ 29/ 00
01/ 08/ 01 0024 (H) READ THE FI RST TI ME -
REFERRALS
01/ 08/ 01 0024 (H TRA, JUD, FIN
02/ 22/ 01 (H TRA AT 1: 00 PM CAPI TOL 17
02/ 22/ 01 (H Heard & Held
M NUTE( TRA)
02/ 27/ 01 (H TRA AT 1: 00 PM CAPI TOL 17
02/ 27/ 01 (H Moved CSHB 4( TRA) Qut of

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE -1- February 28, 2001



Committee
M NUTE( TRA)
02/ 28/ 01 (H JUD AT 1: 00 PM CAPI TOL 120

W TNESS REG STER

JANET SEI TZ, Staff

to Representative Nornman Rokeberg

Al aska State Legislature

Capi tol Building, Room 118

Juneau, Al aska 99801

POSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Assisted with the presentation of HB 4 and
answer ed questi ons.

VALERI E THERRI EN, Vice Chair

Legislative Committee

Advi sory Board on Al coholism and Drug Abuse

779 8th Avenue

Fai r banks, Al aska 99701

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 4 and answered
questi ons.

ERI C TOVASI NO, Executive Director

Teen Chal | enge

PO Box 4281

Pal mer, Al aska 99645

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 4 and answered
guesti ons.

ROSALI E NADEAU, Akeel a House I nc.

4111 M nnesota Drive

Anchor age, Al aska 99503

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in general support of HB 4, but
expressed concerns about funding.

JOE MURDY, Co- Chair

DU Prevention Task Force

1904 West 46t h Avenue

Anchor age, Al aska 99517

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 4 and answered
guesti ons.

CRI STY WLLER TILDEN, Program Director
Al cohol and Drug Abuse Services
Bristol Bay Area Health Corporation
PO Box 786

DiIlingham Al aska 99576

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE - 2- February 28, 2001



POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 4 and answered
guesti ons.

DONNA R GALBREATH, M D.

1958 Kittiwake Lane

Fai r banks, Al aska 99701

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 4 and answered
guesti ons.

JANET McCABE, Chair

Partners for Downtown Progress

1326 K Street

Anchor age, Al aska 99513

POSI TI ON  STATEMENT: During discussion on HB 4, answered
questions regarding the use of Naltrexone.

Cl NDY CASHEN, Mot hers Agai nst Drunk Driving (MADD)

Juneau Chapt er

211 4th Street, Suite 102

Juneau, Al aska 99801

POSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Testified in support of HB 4, and provided
information regarding .08 blood alcohol concentration (BAC
statistics.

GERRY KNASI AK, Public Member

Advi sory Board on Al coholismand Drug Abuse

119 Austin Street

Ket chi kan, Al aska 99901

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 4.

SARAH W LLI AMS, Substance Abuse Program Coor di nat or

| nmat e Prograns

Division of Institutions

Departnent of Corrections

4500 Di pl omacy Drive, Suite 109

Anchor age, Al aska 99508-5927

POSI TI ON  STATEMENT: During discussion of HB 4, provided
information on the Sixth Avenue Correctional Center.

AGNES SWEETSI R

PO Box 8

Gal ena, Al aska 99741

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: During discussion of HB 4, spoke on the
issue of treatnent and provided anecdotal exanples of the
effects of alcoholismon her famly and comunity.

ORI E WLLI AMS

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE - 3- February 28, 2001



PO Box 688

Bet hel , Al aska 99559

POSI TI ON STATEMENT:  During discussion of HB 4, related personal
experience with alcoholismand the effects of treatnent.

VELI NDA FREEMON, Executive Director

Sal vation Arny ditheroe Center

1709 South Bragaw Street

Anchor age, Al aska 99517

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: During discussion on HB 4, addressed the
topic of treatment and answered questi ons.

CHERYL MANN

Advi sory Board on Al coholism and Drug Abuse

PO Box 240434

Anchor age, Al aska 99524

POSI TI ON  STATEMENT: During the discussion on HB 4, gave a
summary of the report produced by the Advisory Board on
Al cohol i sm and Drug Abuse.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

TAPE 01-27, SIDE A
Number 0001

CHAIR NORVAN ROKEBERG called the House Judiciary Standing
Commttee neeting to order at 1:10 p.m Represent ati ves
Rokeberg, Ogan, Coghill, and Meyer were present at the call to
order. Representatives Janes and Berkowitz arrived as the
nmeeting was in progress.

HB 4 - OWNI BUS DRUNK DRI VI NG AMENDMENTS

[ Cont ai ns di scussion of HB 172.]
Nunber 0052

CHAI R ROKEBERG announced that the commttee would hear HOUSE
BILL NO 4, "An Act relating to offenses involving operating a
notor vehicle, aircraft, or watercraft while under the influence
of an alcoholic beverage or controlled substance; relating to
inplied consent to take a chem cal test; relating to
registration of notor vehicles; relating to presunptions arising
from the anount of alcohol in a person's breath or blood; and
providing for an effective date." [Before the conmttee was
CSHB 4(TRA). ]

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE -4- February 28, 2001



CHAI R ROKEBERG, speaking as the sponsor of HB 4, explained that
the fiscal note did not reflect the version before the

committee. He added that the ".16 blood al cohol concentration
(BAC) aggravators" had been renoved, which cut the original $33
mllion fiscal note down to about $8.5 mllion. He said it was
his intention that the conmttee will analyze HB 4 and the costs

of the sections therein in order to decide where the financial
enphasi ze shoul d be placed. He added that the goal of HB 4 is
to separate habitual drunk drivers from their vehicles;
additionally, the inportance of treatnent wll be taken into
consi derati on.

Number 0374

JANET SEITZ, Staff to Representative Norman Rokeberg, Al aska
State Legislature, noted that the sponsor, the House
Transportation Standing Conmittee, the admnistration, the
"mayor's DU task force,” as well as other interested parties
all took part in the creation of HB 4. She also noted the
packet contained news articles from across the state,
hi ghl i ghting sonme of the tragedi es caused by drunk drivers.

MS. SEITZ went on to explain the changes effected by HB 4. The

term "driving while intoxicated (DW)" wll be changed to
"driving while under the influence of an alcoholic beverage or
controlled substance (DU)." It clarifies that a DU wll
i ncl ude al coholic bever ages, i nt oxi cati ng | i quors, and
control |l ed subst ances - whi ch al so i ncl ude i nhal ant s.
Presunptive sentences for first felony convictions for
mansl aughter resulting froma DU wll be increased fromfive to
seven years. The Division of Mtor Vehicles (DW) wll be

mandated to refuse vehicle registration to persons who do not
have a driver's license, or have a suspended or revoked |icense.
Persons who register a vehicle will be required to use their
full name, that being their first, mddle, and | ast nane.

M5. SEITZ also said that HB 4 would neke changes to various
sections [of statute] by replacing the term "reasonabl e grounds”
with the term "probable cause". This change arises out of the
court case Leslie v. State. Another effect of HB 4 will be that
the court will be mandated to notify the DW, by the end of the
foll owi ng business day, when sonmeone is convicted of a DU, so
that the DW can take the appropriate actions. M ni mum | i cense
revocations wll also be established by passage of HB 4.
Anot her change wll be that persons with a limted driver's
license shall only operate vehicles equipped wth a functioning
ignition interlock device. Al so, before a person's driver's

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE - 5- February 28, 2001



license can be reinstated, he or she nust have net the
al coholism screening, eval uati on, referral, and program
requirenents. In addition, the driver's I|icense reinstatenent
fees will be raised for persons convicted of DU

M5. SEITZ also explained HB 4 would require an "enabler"
(sonmeone who loans a car to another who is known not to have
valid driver's license because of DU ) to face driver's |icense
revocation as well as pay a fine. She noted that DU includes

notor vehicles, aircraft, and watercraft. Al so, the blood
al cohol [concentration] limt will be lowered to .08. The fines
and jail sentences on various m sdeneanors and felonies will be
rai sed. Another requirenment will be that the past treatnent
history of a defendant shall be provided to the court,

prosecutor, and any agency involved in treatnment, so long as the
rel ease of such infornmation does not cone into conflict with
f ederal guideli nes.

Nunmber 0606

M5. SEITZ added that the "look-back” provision in current
statute will have a phased-in increase to ten years. This neans
that if a person has three DU /DW convictions within a ten-year
period, the third one will be a felony. The class C felony fine
will be increased, as will the sentences for felonies. Vehicle
(including watercraft) forfeiture will be required if used in a
DU  of fense. Under HB 4, if a driver's license has been
permanently revoked, DW can review the case and restore the
license if certain conditions are net. People who are
incarcerated but do not satisfy their treatnent requirenents
will not be eligible for "good time." |In addition, treatnent is
mandatory for offenders while they are inprisoned. There are
al so provisions in HB 4 that require a person convicted of DU
to return his or her vehicle registration plates to DW. I n
these instances the co-owner of the vehicle can reregister it.
These provisions will prevent a person who should not be driving
from having a regi stered vehicle.

M5. SEITZ also said that under HB 4, the inpairnent standards
will be lowered to .04 [BAC. There is also a requirenment for
clear notification of an individual's right to obtain an
i ndependent [BAC] test. The police will be authorized to obtain
a blood sanple where exigent circunstances prevent t he
adm nistration of a breath test (this cones from an Al aska

Suprenme Court case, Sosa v. State). An Al aska Repeat O f ender
Status System will also be established under HB 4. Thi s
dat abase will enable car dealers and co-owners to learn if an

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE - 6- February 28, 2001



individual is eligible to register a vehicle. The effective
date of HB 4, with the exception of the Al aska Repeat O fender
Status System is July 1, 2001. Ms. Seitz noted that the
af orenenti oned points constituted just a brief overview of the
changes enconpassed by HB 4.

Nunmber 0765

VALERIE THERRIEN, Vice Chair, Legislative Commttee, Advisory
Board on Al coholism and Drug Abuse ("Advisory Board"), noted
that she was also a private attorney in Fairbanks and had taught
classes in crimnology. She said that both she and the Advisory
[ Board] supported HB 4. She also said she wanted the commttee

to keep in mnd the issue of treatnent. She enphasi zed that
treatment does worKk. If the periods of incarceration are going
to be increased, she asked nenbers to keep in mnd the costs
involved in treating individuals who are incarcerated. She

noted that various providers of treatnment have indicated to her
that they are having a difficult time providing treatnment under
current funding limtations.

M5. THERRIEN reported that she had given a talk about DU | aws
at her daughter's mddle school's eighth-grade classes. She
said that the children expressed concern about such issues as
their friends getting caught DU, having alcohol in the trunk,
or having marijuana in the glove conpartnent. She noted that
part of the discussion she attributed to just kids being kids,
but she also noted that the children seened very aware of the
penalties of losing their driver's |icenses. She said that she
t hought that when | ooking at young offenders it was inportant to
keep in mnd that sort of "handle." She also informed nenbers
that out of 80 children in the eighth grade, four of them were
actively "huffing,"” and over 50 percent were drinking.

M5. THERRIEN also reported that Fort Wiinwight had recently
held a "stand down,"” which was a base-wi de training on donestic
vi ol ence issues. She rem nded nenbers that nuch of donestic
violence is caused by drug and al cohol abuse. She noted that
four children have died at Fort Wainwight in the last year from
abuse; subsequently, Fort Wainwight has taken a strong position

with regard to ending donestic violence. She used this
information to illustrate the seriousness of +the issue in
Fai r banks.

M5. THERRIEN, on the point of treatnent in jail, said that she
was recently gi ven statistics t hat she found to be
overwhel m ngly supportive of treatnent. She said 20 wonmen were

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE -7- February 28, 2001



given treatnent and conpared with 20 wonmen who were not given
treatment; the nunber of participants with new felony charges
from the group that did not receive treatnment was five, versus
just one from the group that did receive treatnent from the
residential substance abuse treatnent (RSAT) program The
nunber of wonmen re-incarcerated was significantly lower in the
RSAT group than in the group that did not receive treatnent:
one from the RSAT group versus six from the group wthout
treat ment. She followed up this information by saying that the
Hil and Muntain Correctional Center RSAT program was show ng
great success, and she supported any provisions in HB 4 that
woul d ensure that people in jail got treatnent.

M5. THERRIEN offered to provide nenbers with the statistics she
was referring to. She reiterated her comments about the success
of the Hland Muntain Correctional Center RSAT program and
noted that it began Novenber 1, 1998. She added that increasing
jail tinme and fines is not as effective as providing treatnent.

Nunber 1155

CHAIR ROKEBERG noted that currently, treatnent prograns are
voluntary for people incarcerated in Al aska. Under HB 4,
treatment would becone nandatory. He added that funding for

treatnent was reflected in the fiscal notes.

IVB. THERRI EN  nmentioned that wel I ness courts were also
experiencing great success; when Arizona began a simlar
program it experienced a re-indictnment rate of only 6 percent.
She added that anytinme people can be kept out of jail and given
treatment wth appropriate followup care, the state will save
noney. She affirmed, for Representative Berkowitz, that she
felt that treatnment was absolutely critical for the success of
any conprehensive anti-DU /DW strategy. Wt hout having proper
treatnent prograns coupled with appropriate foll owup prograns,
the |ikelihood of having repeat offenders increases. She al so
confirmed that the studies she had |ooked at showed that
investnments in treatnment yielded cost benefits over the 1ong
run, which resulted in net savings.

REPRESENTATI VE MEYER said in his experience, an alcoholic can be
taken to treatnent, but unless that person wants to change, the
treatnment 1is ineffective. He asked how soneone could be
mandated to accept treatnent.

M5. THERRI EN expl ained that when soneone is in a felony or
m sdenmeanor situation and is about to lose his or her license to

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE - 8- February 28, 2001



practice law or nmedicine, there is a possibility that treatnent

will be mandated. She said she thought that if the courts were
to begin consistently nmandating treatnment as a part of
sentencing, it wuld increase the offender's incentive to

conplete treatnment so that he or she could go back to work. She
noted that the enphasis in drug, wellness, and youth courts is
to get to individuals early and provide treatnent, because the
earlier someone is given treatnment, the greater the Iikelihood

of success. She said it was inportant to fund the Al cohol
Safety Action Program (ASAP) as well as other prograns that
provide followup care. She also noted that if a nedical

provi der, through ASAP, and the treatnent proposal advocated the
use of Naltrexone, then a judge could require the drug' s use as

part of sentencing. Nal trexone is a drug used to decrease a
person's craving for alcohol, and when used during the first
three nonths of treatnent, the person becones nuch nore

receptive to further treatnent.
Number 1393

REPRESENTATI VE MEYER said that during the instances of
intervention that he was famliar with, the persons had already
|l ost their jobs, lost their spouses, lost their children; they
had | ost everything, and there did not seem to be anything nore
that could be used as an incentive to encourage participation in
a treatnent program He said his concern was that if a person
did not want to go to treatnent, the treatnent program was not
going to be successful.

M5. THERRIEN countered that she did not think anyone really
wants to go to treatnment to begin with, but when the court
system and enpl oyers get involved, treatnent becones successf ul
She noted that everybody has to reach bottom at a different
tinme.

REPRESENTATI VE BERKOW TZ said he was aware of new studies that
showed that even forced treatnent has a positive effect. The
old thinking that "people have to want to go to treatnment” no
| onger appli es.

CHAI R ROKEBERG noted that HB 4 has sone mandated treatnment for
incarcerated individuals that is "against the carrot of the
"good tinme'"; thus there could be a significant incentive for
peopl e to choose treatnent. He added that participation in the
treatment prograns offered through the wellness courts is
vol unt ary.

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE - 9- February 28, 2001



M5. THERRI EN added that perhaps people who are not interested in
participating in the current treatnent prograns nay also have
mental health issues contributing to their problens, and those
i ssues need to be addressed before the substance abuse probl ens
can be taken care of.

Nunber 1527

ERI C TOVASI NO, Executive Director, Teen Challenge, said that he
supported HB 4 primarily because it addressed the issue of

treat ment. He added that Teen Challenge is a "faith-based"
program which has a nen's center in Palner and a wonen's center
in Anchorage. He also noted that he is on the Governor's

Advi sory Board on Al coholism and Drug Abuse, and has been on it
for the past seven years. He acknowl edged that HB 4 carries a
| arge fiscal note; nevertheless, he encouraged nenbers to keep
noving forward with it because studies indicate that the price
paid is higher for inaction. He said that the opportunity to
treat people while they are incarcerated should not be passed
up. He said he also liked the idea of the establishnent of a
DW/drug pilot court. He said the inplenentation of this
concept has proven successful in other states. He finalized his
coments by encouraging nenbers to pass HB 4 with an appropriate
fiscal note.

REPRESENTATI VE COGHILL noted that faith-based mnistries, which
help in "this area,” are on the upsw ng. He added that the
difference between incentives and coercion is a topic that is
given careful consideration by the Ilegislature when nmaking
policy decisions. He asked M. Tomasino to describe how
effective incentives were, and how coercion helps in his work
w th yout h.

MR. TOVASI NO responded that coercion is a step towards getting a
person into treatnent. He said that that is a necessary step,
even if it has to be mandated. Each person has to be | ooked at
individually; in his case, coercion wrked as the first step
towards changing his |ife around.

REPRESENTATI VE COGHILL noted that if a choice is offered, that
could provide the coercive action; but he said he viewed HB 4 as
com ng dangerously cl ose to governnental nmandate.

MR.  TOVASINO concluded by saying that the Advisory Board

presents recomendati ons every year to the legislature, and HB 4
enconpasses many of those issues as an entire package.

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE -10- February 28, 2001



Nunmber 1809

ROSALI E NADEAU, Akeela House Inc. ("Akeela"), said that although

generally supportive of HB 4, she still had concerns. As
background, she noted that she provides nuch of the budget
pl anning for Akeela each year. The Departnent of Corrections
(DOC) contracts with Akeela and other private businesses to
provide services wthin the prison system Akeela is the

| argest provider of drug and al cohol treatnent services wthin
the state's prison system Akeel a has progranms in Bethel [at

Yukon- Koskokwi m Correctional Center]; in Seward, at Spring Creek
Correctional Center ("Spring Creek"); and in Kenai, at W] dwood
Correctional Center ("WIldwod") - both RSAT and inmate

substance abuse treatnent (I|SAT) prograns. She noted that RSAT
is a residential program wherein folks are collected in one area
and segregated from the rest of the [prison] popul ation. She
also noted that Akeela is present in the Palnmer Correctional
Center ("Palner"), Palmer [Mat-Su] Pretrial Correctional Center
("Mat-Su"), and at the Point MacKenzie Rehabilitation Center
("Point MacKenzie"). M. Nadeau offered that Akeel a understands
treatnment prograns in the prison system Akeela l|likes the fact
that HB 4 nandates treatnment; nmandated treatnent does work. She
said she could provide research data to support the claim that
mandated treatnment is successful. She noted that nobst of the
research evidence conmes from other states since Al aska has not
had an opportunity to conduct nuch of its own research yet.

M5. NADEAU said her concern with HB 4 revolves around two
prograns that Akeela has taken over from other organizations;
t hese organi zations had to stop participating because they could

not afford to continue providing services for the state. She
said that small nonprofits should not be put in the position of
subsidizing the state. She noted that she had advised her

supervisor to refuse the three-year contract offered by the
state for WMat-Su because Akeela was already subsidizing that
program for the state. O Akeela's four |SAT prograns, not a
single one breaks even financially; Akeela has to use funds from
other sources to support treatnent prograns in the prison
system She said she woul d advocate for Akeela to apply for the
contracts comng up in the spring, but only wth a reasonable

dol lar figure. Ms. Nadeau comented that there not been any
increases in [funding for] substance abuse treatnment within the
prison system since 1993. By conparison, halfway houses have

had an increase of as nuch a 60 percent in their day-cost
[ funding] since 1996. She added that the DOC had asked for a
$200, 000 i ncrenent for treatnment prograns, but the House Finance
Comm ttee turned down that request.

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE -11- February 28, 2001



M5. NADEAU said her final point was that there is a broad body
of interest in the issue of substance abuse, principally,
al cohol abuse, because that is the drug of choice in Alaska. To
illustrate her point she nentioned other |egislation regarding
al cohol issues currently before other commttees. She suggested
that the legislature take the sane approach that was taken
regardi ng chil d-well ness proposals, which was to take a holistic

approach in order to conme up with a sensible solution. She
added that the demand for social workers, judges, and case
managers w ll never be reduced without first reducing substance
abuse. Too often, the funding is allocated to the synptons,

rat her than the cause of the problem

CHAI R ROKEBERG noted that should HB 4 pass with the [funding]
conponent intact, the noney wll go directly to nandated
treat ment prograns.

Nunber 2114

REPRESENTATI VE OGAN commented that in his experience, treatnent
prograns appear to be "revolving doors"; the patterns in the
lives of substance abusers whom he has known do not seem to be
changed by treatnent. He said he wanted to have nore assurance
that treatnment does work. He offered that he knew of nore

people who were not helped by treatnent than people who were
hel ped.

MS. NADEAU responded that perhaps that was due in part to the
fact that when treatnent is successful, the person is not heard
about again; the people that fail the treatnent prograns
continue to be a problem for society. She noted that nost of
t he people she knows, who have successfully noved on with their
lives after going through a treatnment program do not often talk
about it. Statistically, those people are accounted for, but
not on an anecdotal basis.

REPRESENTATI VE COGHI LL noted that the issue of coercion carries
with it a "not if, but when" connotation. Once a conviction
takes place, there is a very legitimate reason to nmandate
treatment. He added that he appreciated hearing the report that
the private businesses that provide treatnent are becom ng weary
of providing services to the state w thout reinbursenent.

Nunber 2262

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE -12- February 28, 2001



JOE MURDY, Co-Chair, DU Prevention Task Force, said that HB 4
acconplishes a lot of the recomrendations brought forth by the
task force. He added that he supports HB 4, 100 percent. He
noted, however, that the appropriate resources nust also be
provided in order to acconplish the goals set forth in HB 4.
Furthernore, that treatnent, in conparison to jail time, is an
inportant part of the overall solution; nevertheless, he did
advocate jail time in order to teach offenders a |esson. He
explained that 80 percent of first-tine offenders do not re-
of f end. He also said that according to a national statistic,
t he average person drives drunk 80 tinmes before being caught.

MR. MJRDY offered that if first-time and second-tinme offenders
can be placed into treatnent prograns, it would go a |ong way
towards solving the problens caused by drunken drivers. He
acknowl edged that it would cost noney, and suggested that the
liquor industry, the state, and the conmunities should al
contribute towards funding. He also suggested offering
treatment providers Jlowinterest 1loans, and changing |oca
zoni ng boundaries so that businesses could expand nore easily.

MR. MJRDY, on the point of mandated treatnent, said that it is
possible to mandate treatnment; if a person had to prove that he
or she had attended a 60-day treatnent program then, after the
60 days, the person mght not be conpletely cured but the idea
woul d be set, and eventually treatnment would work. He said that
from his own personal experience, mandatory treatnent works.
[Onh the issue of funding], he suggested the commttee consider
what a person's life was worth when he or she gets killed by a
drunken driver.

REPRESENTATI VE JAMES commented that the state currently spends
nore than it takes in, and asked M. Mrdy if he had any
sol utions.

TAPE 01-27, SIDE B
Nunber 2474

MR. MJURDY suggested an increase in alcohol taxes, and taking an
of fender's permanent fund dividend (PFD) to pay for treatnent.

REPRESENTATI VE  JAMES countered that enact nent of t hose
suggestions would only provide snmall anpbunts of additional
income to cover state services. She said she was |ooking for
suggestions for additional incone to match both what is being
spent on all state services, and the additional services that
citizens want.

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE -13- February 28, 2001



MR. MJRDY suggested inplenenting a state inconme tax or a state
sal es tax. He agreed that the public always says it does not
want either of those taxes, but public officials nust cone
forward and create nechanisns to increase incone so that state
servi ces can continue.

REPRESENTATI VE BERKOW TZ said he had inferred from a Republican
maj ority-sponsored poll that the public does support a head tax
on crui se ships, as well as an al cohol tax.

MR. MJRDY, in response to questions, said that the Miunicipality
of Anchorage pays for its own prosecutors of m sdeneanants,
furnishes the Sixth Avenue "jail," and has al ways been proactive

with regard to [substance abuse] treatnent. He al so expl ai ned
that the task force had presented approximately 21 points in its
report, and that HB 4 covered nost of those points. He noted

that the wellness court concept is an excellent tool because it
puts treatnent participants under the supervision of a judge.
He finalized by saying he was willing to pay [taxes] in order to
ensure the continuance of state services.

Nunber 2203

CRI STY WLLER TILDEN, Program Director, Al cohol and Drug Abuse
Services, Bristol Bay Area Health Corporation, spoke in support
of HB 4. She went on to say that the Bristol Bay Area Health
Corporation serves an area the size of Chio, and is probably the
only organization that provi des treatnent and prevention
services in the Bristol Bay area. She viewed HB 4 as a
mechani sm that woul d expand [the corporation's] workload, which
is sonething she is happy to have happen; she added that [the
corporation] would like to eventually work itself out of
business [with regard to its Alcohol and Drug Abuse Services].
[ The corporation] is happy to take on nore clients, and she
noted that having access to clients while they are incarcerated
would give [the corporation] nore opportunities to provide
services. She explained that [the corporation] currently serves
the contract jail located in Dillingham with weekly groups, and
has clients through other existing treatnent and ASAP prograns.

M5. TILDEN said that [the corporation] would like to expand
services, but the state has "flat-funded" [the corporation] for
at least the last 13 years. Wth the cost-of-living increases,
[the corporation] has had to shut down sonme of its treatnent
services for up to a nonth and a half because of an inability to
pay counsel ors. She expressed concern that the ASAP office in

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE -14- February 28, 2001



Dillingham mght have to close; over tine, state funding has
decreased to the point that only a third of the costs are being

r ei mbur sed. She noted that the Indian Health Service is
currently subsidizing a large portion of those costs. I n
addition, local revenues fromthe area' s hospital have al so been
used as a funding source. There is |local support for the
progranms, but there is a lack of nobney with which to continue
t hem She added that in reference to the aforenentioned

t axati on suggestions, she, too, was willing to pay.

MS. TILDEN offered the argunent that it was a case of paying now
for treatnent and prevention - accessing offenders as early as
possible while they are in jail - or paying a great deal nore
| ater, for the increased services associated with |ong-term drug
and al cohol abuse. She referred to a report called "Shoveling
Up: the Inpact of Substance Abuse on State Budgets," and said
that it indicated that for every $100 burden on Al aska's public
funds related to substance abuse problenms, only $4.98 went
towards prevention, treatnent, and research, while $95.02 went
towards the judicial system the Division of Famly and Youth
Services (DFYS), and all the other services that are invoked by
a lack of initial treatnent. She added that the report
suggested, as a partial solution, that states require treatnent
for individuals convicted of alcohol- and drug-related traffic

vi ol ati ons, as well as for any substance-abusing state
enpl oyees.

Nunber 2048

M5. TILDEN also noted that the report nentioned that coerced
treatnent was as effective as voluntary treatnent. The threat
of incarceration or loss of benefits can provide the needed
incentive to nove toward recovery. She said she had found, in
her program that virtually everyone is coerced by sone factor.
Whether it is court-, spousal-, enployer-, or health-inspired

coercion, specific pressures are brought to bear on the
of fender, which causes the offender to seek help in the form of
treat nent.

MS. TILDEN descri bed how the rural ASAP program worked and made
sonme conparisons to the ASAP program in Anchorage. She said in
both instances there is one admnistrator who serves the region.
That adm nistrator is responsible for taking court referrals,
running a brief screening device on those referrals, referring
them to the appropriate treatnent program and following up on
recommendations made by clinical staff. She said she thought
that there was $27,000 sent to [the rural ASAP] office every

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE -15- February 28, 2001



year, but that anount doesn't even begin to pay for a third of a

person's salary and office costs. She added that the
adm ni strator al so tracks t he successf ul foll ow up of
recommendati ons, and provides court and crimnal history on the
program s clients. The rur al ASAP program is a
tracki ng/ screening/ nonitoring function, j ust as it is in

Anchorage, but with nmuch | ess support and personnel.

M5. TILDEN explained that the corporation receives funds from
the Indian Health Service and then uses those funds to provide
financi al support to programs, one of which is the ASAP program

So, indirectly, the ASAP program receives funding from the
Indian Health Service, in addition to funding from other |oca

revenue sources such as the hospital.

Nunmber 1185

DONNA R GALBREATH, MD., noted that she is a doctor in
Fai r banks, and said she was speaking on behalf of herself and
her patients. She added that she was from Mentasta, Al aska, and
was hal f At habascan. She explained that alcoholism is a huge
problem in Alaska - doubling the national rates - and is higher
anongst the Al askan Native people. She said that because she is
a physician who works with Alaskan Native people, she works

directly with [alcoholismrelated] problenms every day. She
reported that she was comng to [the conmttee] fromthe "battle
zone"; she works with people who cone in [to her facility]

i ntoxi cated, and for whom [treatnent] beds are not avail able.
Thus she has to place themin the hospital, and sonmetinmes has to
resort to using restraining devices, both physical and cheni cal.
She communi cated her thanks to the commttee for hearing HB 4,
she said she thought it was a wonderful idea. She noted,
however, that from her perspective, HB 4 represented just "the
tip of the iceberg.” She added that while the issue of drunk
driving gets people's attention, the problem of alcoholism is
much bi gger. She enphasi zed that the focus should be on the
di sease of al coholism

DR. GALBREATH acknowl edged that funding is an ongoi ng issue, but
she suggested that it is inportant to keep |ooking at the "big
picture.” She noted that it is hard to keep the big picture in
m nd when working with individuals and their famly nmenbers. On
the point of cost, she said she would guess that "detoxing" a
patient can cost anywhere from $5,000 to $20, 000. She al so
acknowl edged that for sone people, [the detoxification process]
is a revolving door, and for these people the <costs are
astronom cal . Dr. Galbreath predicted that if those people can

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE -16- February 28, 2001



be caught wth a DW and placed in a treatnent program | ong-
term costs can be decreased. She nentioned that [alcoholisni
currently costs the state $243 nillion, and that estimate did
not take into account the price paid by famlies and
conmuni ties.

Nunber 1742

DR. GALBREATH descri bed exanples of sonme of her nale patients
who have been in the prison system for alcohol-related offenses
but did not receive any alcohol treatnment while they were
incarcerated. She explained that those nen cone to her and say
that they "want to do right," they want to have a good life

they want to get back with their kids, they want to find a
partner, they want to make anmends to their famlies, but they
are unable to because there is not any support for them
especially in the rural areas. She added that sonetines these
men cone to her and say they want to work but they are unable to
get their licenses back. Dr. Galbreath warned that there were a
lot of little things to |ook at that constitute the big picture.
On anot her point, she said that she thought that coercion works.
She gave an exanple of having filled out comm tnent papers for a
pregnant patient who was drunk at the tinme of adm ssion.
Utimately, though the commtnent papers were dropped, the
patient did receive treatnment, was able to successfully conplete
treatnment, and is still sober to date, eight years later.

DR. GALBREATH said, on the point of the revolving door, that
that is an ongoing issue and always would be, and that although
she did not have any great answers for that problem she had
faith in people; every time soneone gets "hit" with a piece of
know edge during treatnent, it builds upon itself, and the hope
is that the person will survive long enough to becone sober.
Any addiction takes a long tinme to overcone. She ventured that
everyone in the [commttee] room was addicted to sonething -
coffee, cigarettes, behaviors - and said it takes many attenpts
t o change.

REPRESENTATI VE OGAN expressed his concern about the nunber of
times a person goes through the revolving door; he asked how
much of the state's resources should be expended on what could
prove to be a hopel ess case. He inquired whether there were any
statistics that would help determ ne the point at which sonmeone
could not be hel ped. He added that he says in his heart that he
never wants to give up on anybody, but as a manager of a public
purse, he wants to know where to "draw the line."

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE -17- February 28, 2001



DR. GALBREATH acknow edged that was a very difficult issue; she
said that for sone people treatnent works the first tine
through, for others it can take five or six tinmes, and for stil

other people it takes twenty tines. She said that she would not
want to be the person drawing the |ine because she was out in
the field taking care of those people, and if she did not have
access to any treatnent facilities to place them in, those
peopl e would go either into her hospital or into the DOC system
It canme down to "cost shifting." She added that in | ooking at
the big picture, noney has to be spent now, even though the
costs are horribly expensive, she predicted that the |ong-term
savings of breaking the cycle of addiction would be incredible.
She noted that even though she calls HB 4 a "Band-aid" approach

because it just focuses on drunk driving, if people can be
caught and placed into treatnent, they can becone a role nodels
when they go back to their famlies and comruniti es. Because

hel pi ng even one person can nake such a big difference, she said
she did not think limts could be placed [on the nunber of tines
a person goes into treatnent].

REPRESENTATI VE OGAN equated it with trying to clean up an oi

spill; 98 percent can be cleaned up for "X' anount of dollars,
but ten tinmes that anmpunt will be spent on cleaning up the | ast
2 percent. He said the resources were finite, and he was

| ooking for ways to quantify how many tines, generally speaking,
a person would go through treatnent before it was determ ned
that treatnent was not going to work for that person

Nunmber 1385

REPRESENTATI VE MEYER asked Dr. Galbreath if, as a doctor, she
found it easier for people to quit drinking or to quit snoking.

DR. GALBREATH responded that it was easier to quit drinking.

REPRESENTATI VE MEYER noted that he had quit snoking and thus was
famliar with the "revolving door." He added that the use of
[nicotine] patches and gum helped him quit. He said he
understood that there were now nedications that help curb, or
even kill, the desire for alcohol. He inquired of Dr. Gl breath
if she had ever prescribed those types of drugs, and if so,
whet her she found that those nedi cations worked.

DR. GALBREATH explained that those nedications, such as
Nal t rexone, worked if the person was also in sone type of
treatment program and had appropriate followup care. She noted
that through a small pilot program in the "Tanana Chiefs" area,

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE - 18- February 28, 2001



a lot of people were placed in treatnment and given Naltrexone.
She added that she was unable to quote statistics because the
pil ot program took place eight years ago, but Naltrexone worked.
She also noted there was a national study taking place in order
to quantify the results nore.

REPRESENTATI VE MEYER asked if Nal trexone was expensive.

An unidentified nenber of the audience said that one-nonth's
worth of Naltrexone cost $100 at [Costco Wol esal e War ehouse]
("Costco").

DR. GALBREATH, in response to questions by Representative
Rokeberg, explained that she was only peripherally involved in
the aforenentioned pilot program because she was located in
Fai rbanks at the tine. She was the physician coll aborator, and
all the patients that were involved in the program were her
patients. She also explained that she did use Naltrexone in her
practice, though if a person uses it w thout the benefit of also
being in a treatnent program there is a greater potential for
rel apse. She said that she normally tries to get a person who
cones to her with a drinking problem into treatnent instead of
just prescribing Naltrexone. She normally uses Naltrexone as a
part of the treatnment program although there are circunstances
where she will provide just the Naltrexone.

Number 1162

CHAI R ROKEBERG noted that to his understanding, initially, at
the Al aska Native Medical Center (ANMC) in Anchorage, there was
resistance to the use of Naltrexone. Since then, however, the
| eadi ng physician in that area has becone a great proponent of
Nal t rexone, and has been doi ng sone studi es on dosage.

DR. GALBREATH said that there was a study going on in the state,
al though she could not confirm if it was being conducted by
ANMC.

Nunmber 1143

JANET McCABE, Chair, Partners for Downtown Progress, added that
Dr. Jay Collier (ph) was prescribing [Naltrexone] as part of
[the program at] the primary care center, before sending people
to treatnent.

REPRESENTATI VE BERKON TZ said that Dr. Gal breath's  point
regardi ng cost shifting was an excellent one. He remarked, "W

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE -19- February 28, 2001



either pay here, or we pay in the prisons, or we pay in the
hospital s; we pay sonewhere.” He asked Dr. Gal breath what she
meant when she said "detox sonebody."

DR. GALBREATH expl ai ned that when people cone off of alcohol
they withdraw fromit, especially if they've been drinking every

day for nonths on end. The 1|onger that persons have been
drinking, the harder they detox. Sonmetinmes the effects [of
detox] are mld - shakiness, bad dreans, blood-pressure and
heart-rate increases - and those people are usually treated with
librium (ph) and sonetines adavan (ph); if the effects [of
det ox] reach the point of delirium trenens (DTs) -
hal l ucinations - then those people are put in four-point

restraints and given enough nedication to ensure sl eep. Peopl e
who have DIs and are hallucinating have no idea where they are
or what they are doing, and they can harm thensel ves and ot hers.
Thus treating patients who are detoxing involves a continuum of
treat nent.

Number 1035

CINDY CASHEN, Mdthers Against Drunk Driving (MADD), Juneau
Chapter, said she was a victim of a drunk driver. She i nf orned
the commttee that nenbers of MADD wanted to pay [tribute] to
Representati ve James. Ms. Cashen explained that today was the
fifth year [anniversary] of the first day of her sobriety. She
added that she went in [to treatnent] under coercion - she did
not want to go, she did not think that she was an alcoholic

soneone needed to push her into [treatnent] - and it worked for

her . Ms. Cashen further explained that her perception that she
was living in a safe community changed on April 19, [2001], when
a drunk driver killed her father, Ladd Macaul ay. She noted that
HB 4 wll change the DW BAC (blood alcohol concentration)
[limt] from .10 to .O08. Laboratory and test-track research
shows that wvirtually all drivers are substantially inpaired at
.08 BAC with regard to judgnment; dividing attention; and
critical driving skills such as braking, steering, and |ane-
changi ng. According to studies, performance decrenents in sone
of these tasks are as high as 60-70 percent at .08 BAC.

MS. CASHEN reported there was a 12 percent reduction in alcohol -
related fatalities in California in 1990, which was the year the
.08 BAC |imt and an adm nistrative |license revocation |aw went
into effect. The decrease in alcohol-related fatalities
occurred at both high and | ow BAC | evels, which neant that even
chronic drunk drivers with BAC levels of .20 or greater were

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE - 20- February 28, 2001



affected by the .08 BAC limt. She rem nded the commttee that
Al aska has a high population of chronic drunk drivers.

Nunmber 0869

MS. CASHEN comruni cated that MADD supports HB 4 with regard to
vehi cl e i mpoundnent; data from studies done in GChio, California,
and Mani toba, Canada, have denonstrated that vehicle inpoundnment
reduces the nunber of subsequent DW of f enses. Mot her s Agai nst
Drunk Driving supports the increase in the |ook-back provisions
of HB 4, whereby a person who has two DWs wthin ten years,
instead of five years, wll be sentenced and convicted as a
felon on the third DW. She added that by taking the chronic
drunk driver off the road and placing him or her into intensive
treatment programs, HB 4 wll effectively elimnate many of
[ Al aska' s] drunk-driving fatalities.

M5. CASHEN said that MADD realizes that changing the BAC |limt
to .08 is not the only answer to [the problem of] drunk driving,
but [the change to] .08 wll be a significant factor in
educating the public on the dangers of driving while inpaired.
She informed the conmittee that the conbination of changing the
BAC Ilimt to .08, vehicle inpoundnent, a |onger |ook-back tine
on offenders' driving records, and intensive treatnent prograns
has al ready been proven in several states to |lower the [rate of]
drunk-driving injuries and fatalities.

M5. CASHEN, in conclusion, related the following facts from | ast
sunmer : the person who killed her father and Martin Richard on
April 19 had a record of drunk driving; Donna Hobson was
severely injured on June 24 by a drunk driver with two prior
convictions; Jessie Wthrow was killed on July 3 by a drunk
driver with six previous DW convictions; and on July 4 a drunk
driver with a revoked |icense and five prior convictions struck
and seriously injured two girls. Ms. Cashen explained that
these exanples were only sone of the tragedies that occurred
| ast year, and she was bringing them to the attention of the
commttee because, had the provisions of HB 4 been in effect,
these deaths [and injuries] mght have been prevented. The
people nentioned are all wvictins, as are their famlies,
friends, and colleagues. Another point she urged the conmttee
to keep in mnd is that the drunk driver also brings to the
table an additional "tribe" of wvictinms, that of the drunk
driver's famly, who now have to |live with the fact that sonmeone
they love is now a nurderer or has severely injured soneone

Ms. Cashen said that by putting the provisions of HB 4 into
effect (.08 BAC limt, vehicle inpoundnent, increases in the

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE -21- February 28, 2001



| ook-back provision, and requiring treatnent) there is great
| i kel i hood of I|owering not only drunk-driving fatalities, but
also all the other serious injuries involved with al coholism

Nurmber 0602
GERRY KNASI AK, Public Menber, Advisory Board on Al coholism and

Drug Abuse, said she was from Ketchikan, which she said she
believes has the dubious distinction of having the |argest

consunption of alcohol in the state of Al aska. She also said
she supports HB 4, and she comrended [the legislature] for
creating it. However, she wanted to remnd the commttee that
HB 4 addresses only a small part of the picture. In Al aska, so
many resources are devoted to the indicators of the problem
rather than the <cause - the <cause being the disease of

al cohol i sm She noted that someone had already nade the point
that there would never be enough counselors or social workers
until the cause was addressed. On the point of cost, she
expl ained that the Advisory Board had once considered doing a
study on the cost of doing nothing; however, the board did not
have the funds to proceed with the study. She surm sed that had
the study been done, it wuld have been very illumnating
because the cost of doing nothing is horrendous. She said:

Until we really bite the bullet and face the issue, we
are going to continue addressing those things that are
indicators. W can continue to build prisons, we can
continue to take children away from their nothers, we
can continue having children who are fetal alcoho

syndrome ( FAS). W can continue doing all those
things, and addressing those with resources that are
so hard to cone by. It is so painful to see prograns

that work having to cut down to a nub, and actually,
in sone cases, just fold. So the question is, when do
you pay for it. | submt you either pay for it now or
you pay for it later

REPRESENTATI VE BERKOW TZ asked Ms. Knasiak to elaborate on her
comment s about prograns that have worked but which have been cut
back.

M5. KNASI AK said that the DOC had given a presentation earlier
that day about prograns that were working but which were cut
back.

Number 0403

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE -22- February 28, 2001



SARAH W LLI AMS, Substance Abuse Program Coordinator, Innate
Progranms, Division of Institutions, Departnent of Corrections,
explained that the Sixth Avenue Correctional Center had a 20-
hour/week program and it has been cut back to a 5-hour/week
pr ogram She added that that facility was a key point of
i ntervention, doing over half the bookings in the DOC each year.
It provided intervention for pregnant wonen who were drinking,
using intravenous (IV) drugs, or otherwise participating in
ri sky behavior with regard to HV AIDS. The DOC had to cut the
program down because it could not pay the vendors enough to
provi de the services.

M5. KNASI AK added, on the point of whether treatnent works, that
when she was living in Juneau she had attended "birthdays" of
people who were in recovery and celebrating sobriety, and she
found it to be a nost touching and uplifting experience. And
whil e she, herself, did not have a drinking problem she did not
know of anyone whose |ife has not been touched by alcoholismto
sone degree.

Number 0250

AGNES SWEETSIR said she is Athabascan; having been born in
Tanana, she now lives in Galena, where she grew up. She
explained that she was a social worker for 14 years at the
Division of Famly and Youth Services (DFYS). She noted that
during an informal study she had done on her own casel oad, 94
percent of the famlies that she served were in the system
because of alcoholism She added that she resigned her position
about a year ago, primarily because she was frustrated with the
| ack of available treatnent prograns in her area. She said she
hoped that as a private citizen she would be able to effect sone
change in the anobunt of resources available for alcoholism
treatnent. Her goal is to be able to help the people of Al aska,

and, primarily, the children. She noted that she has been
serving as a volunteer on the Advisory Board on Al coholism and
Drug Abuse for the last few nonths. She also said that she

hersel f, has been devastated by al coholism many nenbers of her
| arge extended famly are addicted to alcohol, as well as other
subst ances. She has had three brothers commt suicide as a
result of their addictions.

TAPE 01-28, SIDE A
Number 0001

M5. SWEETSIR explained that one of her brothers had sought
treatment diligently but no beds were available for him Two

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE -23- February 28, 2001



weeks after he was released from the hospital in Fairbanks he
still had not found any treatnent facility that had room for
him He called his wife to tell her how nuch he |oved her, the
children, and the grandchildren; he related that he thought he
was never going to get treatnent, that he was causi ng people too
much pain, and that maybe he was not worth [the trouble] anyway.
Ms. Sweetsir said that her brother was a man with a lot of
potential, and she surmsed that if he had had treatnent, he
woul d not have hung hinsel f.

M5. SWEETSIR noted that the day after her brother commtted
suicide, a cousin of hers died of what M. Sweetsir said she
believed to be an alcohol-related illness. Since then, there
have been sixteen funerals in her area. The last funeral was
for a two-nonth-old infant who was shot by soneone under the
i nfluence of alcohol and possibly other drugs. She added t hat
the boy who shot the baby is a distant relative of hers, and she
was aware of the fact that his famly had tried diligently for
years to get himinto treatnment, but to no avail

M5. SWEETSI R enphasi zed that treatnment has to be nmamde avail able
if the cycle [of alcoholism is to be broken. She added that in
her famly, which she said she thinks is representative of many
Native famlies and Native comunities, she and her sisters have
to try to find solutions for their nieces and nephews who are at
risk of dying because they are left without fathers as a result
of al coholism She said that it is very painful to have to
wat ch and not be able to do anything to help.

M5. SWEETSIR urged the conmittee to do all it could to nake
treatnent avail abl e. She said HB 4 is only the first step; the
subject of treatnent has to be kept on the table in order to

effect a change. On the topic of paying for services, M.
Sweetsir said she was willing to pay, and in fact, she was
already paying dearly every day. She said her famly is
devastated and that they live in fear every day - of the
af orenenti oned sixteen funerals, over half of them were
al coholismrel ated deaths. Again, she said she was pleading
with the conmttee to keep the [subject of treatnment for
al coholism on the table. She added that according to
statistics, one of her four sons will die by the age of 25, and

she said that that was a sobering and painful thought; she works
every day to try to make a difference in addressing the problens
[of alcoholisn]. She asked that the conmttee help by providing
t he fundi ng and nmeki ng treatnent avail able for people.

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE - 24- February 28, 2001



REPRESENTATI VE COGHI LL noted that the topic of treatnent kept
comng up, and if HB 4 goes into law, then there will be a
hi gher dermand for treatnment. He asked Ms. Sweetsir for exanples
of areas where the growh of treatnent centers can be encouraged
by the | egislature.

M5. SWEETSIR responded that she believed that alcoholism was a
famly disease, and thus needed to be treated as such. She
added that in her experience, treatnent [for alcoholisn] in
Al aska is largely unavail abl e. She had been |ooking into the
prospect of expanding into famly treatnment, where nany people
and many generations can be affected. Al so, she said she
thought it would be nice to be able to bring treatnent to the
people in their hones, so that all of the famly can be treated.

REPRESENTATI VE COGHI LL said he appreciated that input. He noted
that he was in favor of coercive treatnent, but it was a matter
of where and when [to institute it]. He commented that when
offenders get treatnent during incarceration, they can be
taught, but when offenders |eave the correctional facility there
is not nmuch available in the way of either accountability or
foll owup treatnent. Thus, he added, not only will there be a
cost to inplenent [HB 4], but there will also be a need for
treatnment facilities.

REPRESENTATI VE OGAN said he supports the concept of treatnent,
but he was not sure that secular treatnent would be as effective
as faith-based treatnment because there is a part of the spirit
that is wounded and which nust also be nade whole. He suggested
that perhaps "they" <could interface wth President Bush's
proposed faith-based treatnent prograns.

Number 0730

ORIE WLLI AMS commented that he was 15 years sober as of today.
He said he related to the disease of alcoholism as a cancer,
probably worse than a cancer. He noted that the disease affects
every famly nmenber [of an alcoholic]. He said that HB 4 starts
to address the problem but when the commttee is asking the
question "What famly are you really fronP?" he pointed out that

the answer is "The famly of Alaska,”" and when asking what
portion of the famly do you kick out to nake the famly feel
better, the answer is "none." If a famly nmenber is suffering

from sone other debilitating disease such as cancer or diabetes,
the famly spends all available resources on that person, and
that person is given the support he or she needs.

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE -25- February 28, 2001



MR. WLLIAVMS noted that for too long in the frontier state of
Al aska, the nessage has been that to work hard and play hard
(including drinking hard) nmeant that a person was a nman. He
said that he has wunending respect for people who, unlike
hinsel f, can sit down and have a social drink wthout causing
chaos. He noted that he certainly could not just go have one
glass of wine - maybe just one bottle or one case would be nore
like it for him He added that the craving [for alcohol] does
not go away. The aches, pains, and chaos are still wth him
too; they are just in remssion. On the topic of "blackouts,"
he said he renenbers all too often, after having driven for
mles and mles, "waking up" to discover he had driven past his
destination. He shared one exanple of driving from Cantwell,
Al aska, past Nenana, waking up in a gravel pit, turning around
and going in the wong direction, all wthout renenbering the
trip itself. He also said that he has been an al coholic since
hi gh school, and has never spoken about it in public before
t oday. He nentioned being thankful that nobody gave up on him
over the years. He al so nentioned having two DWs and sui ci dal
feelings. He referred to the tendency of parents to cone to the
rescue of their children [who are caught DW] in order to help
their kids avoid the booking process so that they don't have to
wake up in jail. He advocated that first-time offenders should
be treated harshly so that there would not be further offenses.

Nunber 1018

MR. WLLIAMS nentioned that he and his wife pay $40,000 a year
in federal taxes without the benefit of knowi ng what the noney
is used for; he added that he would be happy to pay a state
income tax [to help fund services]. He related sonme of his
personal experiences with his battle wth alcoholism He said
that sonetines people have to fall deep enough into the "sewer"”
before they decide they don't want to "be flushed one nore
tinme," and he posed the question, "How valuable is our society
if we don't help the weakest nenber of our famly?" He added
that famlies and towns cone together to bury ol der nenbers of
the community, but too often in Alaska it is the older nenbers
of the conmmunities that are burying the youth [because of
al cohol -rel ated probl ens].

MR. WLLIAMS nentioned that the topic of aftercare had not been
br oached nuch. He said that one of the things that helped him
was mandatory aftercare for 11 nonths; he had to report back to
the court and prove that he had conpleted the aftercare program
He said that he thought that followup [treatnent] was critical.
He commented that substance abuse and spousal abuse were

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE - 26- February 28, 2001



fl ooding Alaska's court systens. On the point of DWs, he noted
that during the course of his 20 years of drinking, he should
have gotten over 1,100 DWs, even if he had only been drinking
on weekends, which was not the case. He spoke again about his
experiences wth blackouts, and stressed the point that
treatment works, and that it worked for him - although he
ventured that sonme people could argue the point of his life's
wor t h. He added that wi thout treatnment and aftercare, he would
not be here today.

Number 1279

MR. WLLIAVS again stressed the point that it is inportant to
fund treatnment and aftercare prograns. And even though people
will conplain about having to pay an extra tax on alcohol, he
suggested that there was not one person who could not afford to
pay it - the person with the disease of alcoholismw Il find the

noney, regardless. He said he wi shed that noney from an al cohol
tax could go directly to fund treatnent, but he acknow edged
that instead it would go into the general fund. Nevert hel ess,
he added, the legislature can fund treatnment indirectly by
passi ng and funding HB 4, which would nandate treatnent.

REPRESENTATI VE OGAN thanked M. WIllianms for sharing his
per sonal experiences.

REPRESENTATI VE BERKOW TZ thanked M. WIllians for rem nding the
commttee, "You can't |eave people behind; the neasure of who we
are as a state depends on our ability to stop and help those
peopl e who can't help thenselves, because, if we persist, good
things wll happen.”

REPRESENTATI VE COGHI LL asked M. WIllians to contact him at a
| ater date to discuss the topic of aftercare.

CHAIR ROKEBERG asked M. Wllians to provide information
regarding the cost and availability of treatnent in the Bethel
ar ea.

M5. MCABE noted that HB 4 and [HB 172] go well together. She
said she hoped that [HB 172] will address, at the district court
| evel, the people with alcohol-related problens before those
peopl e harm others and further destroy their own |ives. She
al so said she hoped that [HB 172] could be set up to include
people with a third felony DU in the court [created by HB 172].

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE -27- February 28, 2001



M5. MCABE, on the point of Naltrexone use, said that Judge
Wananmaker includes Naltrexone use as a conponent of treatnent,
and it has been found to be a very effective drug because it
takes the "driving edge" off sonebody who is trying to get rid
of an addiction, thus enabling that person to see the rewards of
sobriety. She suggested that if the list in Section [29] could
i ncl ude phar maceut i cal t r eat ment in conj unction W th
"psycho/social" treatnent - whereby a physician could prescribe
the drug - then, for $100/nonth, a person's treatnent would be
enhanced.

Nunber 1577

MELI NDA FREEMON, Executive Director, Salvation Arnmy ditheroe
Center (Citheroe Center), noted that she was also a clinical
consultant for the Aleutian/Pribilof Islands Association. She
said she appreciated the [legislature' s] conprehensive work
towards elimnating the increasing problens of alcoholism and
drug abuse in the state. She added that during her 22 years in
the social services field, she had yet to see a famly that had
not, in sone way, been affected or devastated by al cohol abuse.
She encouraged the conmttee to provide sufficient funding for
the fiscal notes, and to support the entire budget. She said
there is a need to increase the DOC s provision regarding
services, because Citheroe Center subsidizes its contracts with
the DOC in order to provide treatnent for incarcerated nen and
wonen. [Clitheroe Center continues to subsidize DOC] because it
has been proven that providing treatnent to soneone who is
i ncarcerated works. She also noted that [Citheroe Center] has
a long waiting list; [Citheroe Center] did not apply for the
"drug court's" noney because it was not fiscally sound to do so.

M5. FREEMON stated that coerced treatnment does worKk. She said
that she was very skeptical [of that fact] before she went into
t he substance-abuse field, but she is now a proponent, even, of
involuntary commtnents to substance abuse treatnent. What is
needed with crimnal clients is to help them restructure their
thinking patterns; the clients don't have to reach bottom they
just need to be shown that they will reach bottomif they don't
change their thinking patterns. She also said that she wanted
to encourage the commttee to |look at the broad issue and work
col | aboratively with the other divisions and departnents; no one
woul d have known [beforehand] that increased funding for the
Division of Fam |y and Youth Services could be obtained, and the
sane thing is possible for drug and al cohol treatnment with [the
| egi sl ature's] effort.

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE - 28- February 28, 2001



REPRESENTATI VE MEYER asked what the waiting list was for the
Clitheroe Center.

M5. FREEMON responded that the outpatient treatnment waiting I|ist
was approximtely 35 people, the residential treatnent waiting
list was between 20 to 30 people - [Citheroe Center] needs nore
beds for wonen and children - and [Citheroe Center] also
maintains waiting lists for all of its prograns. She al so
explained that it takes approximately two to four weeks to get
though a waiting list of 35 people. Wth regard to funding the
prograns, she said that [Citheroe Center] taps every resource
of the client that it can; it requires paynent, even if it is
only $5/nonth; it taps the PFDs of every individual client; and
it pursues clients wth its collections departnment quite
heavily. Another resource is the alcohol excise tax, as well as
every other arena where the user pays the noney. Al t hough she
said she considers "If you use it, you pay for it" to be a
phi | osophi cal statement, she said she thought individuals who
are using alcohol to "this degree" need to be paying in order to
help alleviate the synptons and problens that occur as a result
of al cohol abuse.

CHAI R ROKEBERG asked if there was a |limt to the attachment of a
PFD check

M5. FREEMON answered that up to 80 percent of a PFD check coul d
be attached. She also said she would provide the commttee with
brochures and ot her handouts that detail the types and costs of
the prograns [Clitheroe Center] offers.

M5. NADEAU added that nost organizations "cap" their waiting
lists, because it was not reasonable to keep addi ng nanes when
[ organi zati ons] won't be able to get to those nanes.

Nunmber 1889

CHERYL MANN, Advisory Board on Alcoholism and Drug Abuse, said
she is a professor of human services at the University of Al aska
Anchor age (UAA). Wth regard to the annual report produced by
the Advisory Board on Al coholism and Drug Abuse, she expl ained
that part of her findings were that Alaska Native wonmen were
likely to be: ol der, single, and unenployed; to have high
school (or lower) educational levels; to live in a village; to
be addicted to alcohol; to have been to treatnent previously;
and to be court-ordered to treatnent nore frequently that non-
Native wonmen. She said she wanted to encourage the conmttee to
ensure treatnent accessibility, particularly for wonen, and

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE -29- February 28, 2001



wonmen with children. She also noted that in order to provide
treatment services, prograns had to be staffed by people who
were trained and know edgeabl e about addictions and the dynanics
of alcoholism and drug abuse. Thus, workforce devel opnent
efforts had to be in place in order to train [future staff]; as
[the legislature] looks at the funding for substance abuse
treatnent, she suggested [the |egislature] should al so consider
taking steps to provide an adequate workforce. She cl osed her
testinony by saying she was pleased to see [the l|legislature] was
taking a nore holistic approach to the very conpl ex problem [of
al cohol and drug abuse].

[HB 4 was held over.]
ADJ OQURNVENT
Number 1988

There being no further business before the commttee, the House
Judi ciary Standing Conm ttee neeting was adjourned at 3:20 p. m

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE - 30- February 28, 2001



